In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies Act 2006

MR01 Particulars of a charge

ŚIRIS Laserform

A fee is payable with this form. You can use the WebFiling service to file this form online Please see 'How to pay' on the Please go to www companieshouse gov uk last page What this form is for What this form is NOT for For further information, please You may use this form to register You may not use this form to refer to our guidance at a charge created or evidenced by register a charge where there is no www companieshouse gov uk instrument Use form MR08 an instrument This form must be delivered to the Registrar for registration within 21 days beginning with the day after the date of creation of the charged delivered outside of the 21 days it will be rejected unless it is accomp Please return via court order extending the time for delivery 09/06/2014 CH London Counter **COMPANIES HOUSE** ou **must** enclose a certified copy of the instrument with this form. The scanned and placed on the public record For official use Company details Filling in this form 8 Company number Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals Dennis Publishing (UK) Limited (the Chargor) Company name in full All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by * Charge creation date d O m₆ Charge creation date Names of persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge Please show the names of each of the persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge The Royal Bank of Scotland plc Name (the Security Trustee) Name Name Name If there are more than four names, please supply any four of these names then tick the statement below I confirm that there are more than four persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge

Description Continuation page Please give a short description of any land (including buildings), ship, aircraft or Please use a continuation page if intellectual property registered (or required to be registered) in the UK which is you need to enter more details subject to this fixed charge or fixed security The Chargor has charged in favour of the Security Description Trustee (a) by way of legal mortgage all of its interest in the Land referred to opposite its name in Schedule 2 of the Debenture, and by way of fixed charge any right, title or (b) interest which it has now or may subsequently acquire to or in any other Land, (c) by way of fixed charge all its Intellectual Property, including, where the Chargor is a Trade Mark Chargor the Trade Mark Property which belongs to it now or at any time during the Security Period, and all fees, royalties and other rights of (11)every kind deriving from the Trade Mark Property The Debenture contains fixed charges or fixed security over other relevant assets which are not listed in this Block 4 (Description) Please see Schedules 10 and 11 of the Debenture for further details Capitalised terms are defined in the Debenture Fixed charge or fixed security Does the instrument include a fixed charge or fixed security over any tangible or intangible (or in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box [X] Yes ☐ No Floating charge Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box [x] Yes Continue No Go to Section 7 Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company? [x] Yes **Negative Pledge** Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the chargor from creating any further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge? Please tick the appropriate box [x] Yes No

MR01

Particulars of a charge

CHFP025 04/13 Version 1 0

MR01 Particulars of a charge Trustee statement You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge form MR05) Signature Please sign the form here Signature This form must be signed by a person with an interest in the charge

MR01

Particulars of a charge

Presenter information	Important information
We will send the certificate to the address entered below. All details given here will be available on the public record. You do not have to show any details	Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record
here but, if none are given, we will send the certificate to the company's Registered Office address	How to pay
Contact name CHJP/PMA/070001 01085	A fee of £13 is payable to Companies House in respect of each mortgage or charge filed
Company name Dentons UKMEA LLP	on paper.
Address One Fleet Place	Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House'
One Free Frace	5 Miles de la constant
	Where to send
Post town London	You may return this form to any Companies House address However, for expediency, we advise you
County/Region	to return it to the appropriate address below:
Postcode E C 4 M 7 W S	For companies registered in England and Wales The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ
Country	DX 33050 Cardiff
DX DX 242 LONDON/CHANCERY LANE	For companies registered in Scotland:
Telephone +44 20 7242 1212	The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,
✓ Certificate	139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF DX ED235 Edinburgh 1
We will send your certificate to the presenter's address	or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)
if given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank	For companies registered in Northern Ireland The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
✓ Checklist	Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG
We may return forms completed incorrectly or	DX 481 N R Belfast 1
with information missing	Further information
Please make sure you have remembered the	For further information, places and the guidance nates
following: The company name and number match the	For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www companieshouse gov uk or
Information held on the public Register You have included a certified copy of the	email enquiries@companieshouse gov uk
instrument with this form	This form is available in an
You have entered the date on which the charge was created	alternative format. Please visit the
You have shown the names of persons entitled to	forms page on the website at
the charge You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8	www.companieshouse.gov.uk
You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate	
You have signed the form	
You have enclosed the correct fee	
Please do not send the original instrument, it must be a certified copy	

CHFP025 04/13 Version 1 0





CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 3870844

Charge code 0387 0844 0002

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 4th June 2014 and created by DENNIS PUBLISHING (UK) LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 9th June 2014

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 12th June 2014





DENTONS

Debenture

Dated 4 June 2014

Dennis Holdings Limited

(the Company)

The companies listed in Schedule 1 (together with the Company, the Original Chargors)

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc (the Security Trustee)

> I certify that, save for material redacted pursuant to s 859G of the Companies Act 2006, this is a true copy of the part of the charging instrument signed by or on behalf of the chargor, and attaches a true copy of the signature page to each other part of such charging instrument

Dated 9 June 2014

Dentons UKMEA LLP

Dentons UKMEA LLP One Fleet Place London EC4M 7WS United Kingdom DX 242

Contents

1	Definitions and Interpretation	1
2	Covenant to pay	5
3	Creation of Security	5
4	Nature of Security created	8
5	Conversion of floating charge	9
6	Representations and warranties	10
7	Positive covenants	12
8	Negative covenants	16
9	Voting and other rights	18
10	Enforcement	19
11	Appointment and powers of Receivers	20
12	Protection of purchasers	21
13	Protection of the Secured Parties	21
14	Preservation of Security	22
15	Tacking	25
16	Further assurance	25
17	Power of attorney	27
18	Currency	27
19	Discharge of Security	27
20	Costs and expenses	27
21	Additional Chargors	28
22	Notices	28
23	Calculations and certificates	30
24	Partial invalidity	30
25	Remedies and walvers	30
26	Amondments and walvers	30

27	Counterparts	30
28	Governing law and enforcement	30
Schedi	ule 1 – Original Chargors	32
Sched	ule 2 – Land charged by way of legal mortgage	33
Schedi	ule 3 – Shares	34
Sched	ule 4 – Form of notice for Assigned Agreements	35
Schedi	ule 5 – Form of notice for Insurances	37
Schedi	ule 6 – Form of notice for Derivative Contracts	39
Sched	ule 7 – Current Accounts	41
Schedi	ule 8 – Forms of letter to and from the Account Bank	42
Schedu	ule 9 – Trade Marks	50
Schedu	ule 10 - Intellectual Property Rights	51
Schedu	ule 11 – Material Trade Marks	61
Schedu	ule 12 - Form of Security Accession Deed	63

Debenture

Dated 4 June 2014

Between

- (1) Dennis Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales with registered number 06400281 having its registered office at 9-11 Kingly Street, London, W1B 5PN (the Company),
- (2) The companies listed in Schedule 1 (*Original Chargors*) (together with the Company, the **Original Chargors**), and
- (3) The Royal Bank of Scotland plc as trustee for the Secured Parties (the Security Trustee)

Recitals

- A The Finance Parties have agreed to make credit facilities available on the terms of the Facility Agreement.
- B The Chargors have agreed to provide Security to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) to secure the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities

This deed witnesses

1 Definitions and interpretation

1.1 Definitions

Words and expressions defined in the Facility Agreement shall have the same meanings in this Debenture unless they are expressly defined in it and, in addition, in this Debenture

Act means the Law of Property Act 1925

Account means a Current Account, the Deposit Account, a Holding Account or a Mandatory Prepayment Account

Account Bank means, in respect of each Account, the bank or other financial institution at which that Account is held

Assigned Agreements means the Material Contracts and the Intra-Group Loan Agreements

Authorisation means an authorisation, consent, approval, resolution, licence, exemption, filing, notarisation or registration

Chargor means each Original Chargor and each company which grants Security over its assets in favour of the Security Trustee by executing a Security Accession Deed in accordance with Clause 21 (Additional Chargors)

Controlled Accounts means each of the following bank accounts in the name of a Chargor or to which it is beneficially entitled

- (a) each Mandatory Prepayment Account, and
- (b) the Deposit Account

Controlled Debt means any debt or moneys due or owing to a Chargor, the proceeds of which, once received by that Chargor, are or will be Controlled Proceeds

Controlled Proceeds means any proceeds or other moneys received by a Chargor from time to time which, under the terms of the Finance Documents, that Chargor must either:

- (a) apply in repayment or prepayment of the Secured Liabilities, or
- (b) pay into a Controlled Account

Current Account means

- (a) each account of the Chargors set out in Schedule 7 (Current Accounts), and
- (b) any other account which a Chargor holds with any bank or financial institution from time to time, other than a Holding Account or a Controlled Account

Default Rate means the rate of interest specified in, and calculated in accordance with, clause 10.3 (*Default interest*) of the Facility Agreement

Dennis Intellectual Property means the Intellectual Property listed in Schedule 10 (Intellectual Property Rights)

Derivative Contract means any master agreement, schedule, confirmation, novation or other instrument entered into by the Chargor and a counterparty in connection with protection against or benefit from fluctuation in any rate or price

Distribution Rights means all dividends, interest and other distributions paid or payable on or in respect of any Investments or Shares and any right to receive them

Equipment means, in relation to a Chargor, all its fixed and moveable plant, machinery, tools, vehicles, computers and office and other equipment and the benefit of all related Authorisations, agreements and warranties

Facility Agreement means the facility agreement dated on or about the date of this Debenture between, among others, the Chargors, the Security Trustee and the other Finance Parties (as defined in that agreement)

Insurance means, in relation to a Chargor, each contract or policy of insurance to which that Chargor is a party or in which it has an interest

Intellectual Property means

- (a) any patents, trade marks, service marks, designs, business names, copyrights, database rights, design rights, domain names, moral rights, inventions, confidential information, knowhow and other intellectual property rights and interests (which may now or in the future subsist), whether registered or unregistered, and
- (b) the benefit of all applications and rights to use such assets of each Group Company (which may now or in the future subsist)

Intra-Group Loan means a loan made under an Intra-Group Loan Agreement.

Intra-Group Loan Agreement means an agreement under which a Group Company has or will make available a facility to another Group Company

Investments means all or any stocks, shares (other than any Shares), bonds and securities of any kind (marketable or otherwise), negotiable instruments and warrants and any other financial instruments (as defined in the Regulations)

IP Licensing Agreements means the IP licensing agreements between the Company and Dennis Publishing Limited (a company incorporated in England and Wales with registered number 01138891) dated on or about the date of this Debenture over the Dennis Intellectual Property

IP Sales Agreements means

- (a) the sales agreement between Felix Dennis and the Company dated on or about the date of this Debenture transferring certain Intellectual Property to the Company,
- (b) the trademark assignment dated 17 April 2014 between Octane Media Limited (a company incorporated in England and Wales with registered number 04635682) and the Company assigning certain Intellectual Property to the Company,
- (c) the trade mark assignment dated 17 April 2014 between Dennis Publishing Limited (a company incorporated in England and Wales with registered number 01138891) assigning certain Intellectual Property to the Company,
- (d) the trade mark assignment dated 17 April 2014 between Halo Publishing Limited (a company incorporated in England and Wales with registered number 05857528) assigning certain intellectual Property to the Company, and
- (e) any other sales agreement or trade mark assignment under which Intellectual Property is transferred and/or assigned to the Company

Land has the same meaning as it has in section 205(1) of the Act

Material Contracts means

- (a) the IP Licensing Agreements, and
- (b) the IP Sales Agreements

Material Trade Marks mean the trade marks listed in Schedule 11 (Material Trade Marks)

Receiver means a receiver appointed pursuant to this Debenture or to any applicable law, whether alone or jointly, and includes a receiver and/or manager and, if the Security Trustee is permitted by law to appoint an administrative receiver, includes an administrative receiver

Regulations means the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No 2) Regulations 2003 (S I 2003/3226) or equivalent legislation in any applicable jurisdiction bringing into effect Directive 2002/47/EC on financial collateral arrangements, and Regulation means any of them

Secured Liabilities means the liabilities of the Obligors to the Secured Parties under or pursuant to the Finance Documents

Security means a mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, assignment by way of security, retention of title provision, trust or flawed asset arrangement (for the purpose of, or which has the effect of, granting security) or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement in any jurisdiction having a similar effect

Security Accession Deed means a deed executed by a Group Company substantially in the form set out in Schedule 12 (Form of Security Accession Deed), with those amendments which the Security Trustee may approve or reasonably require

Security Assets means, in relation to a Chargor, all of its assets which are the subject of any Security created or to be created by this Debenture

Shares means all shares held by a Chargor in its Subsidiaries

Trade Mark means each registered trade mark owned now or in the future by a Chargor (including those registered trade marks described in Part 1 of Schedule 9 (*Trade Marks*) and those trade marks which form part of the Dennis Intellectual Property)

Trade Mark Application means each application for the registration of a trade mark which has been made at the date of this Debenture, or which may be made in the future by a Chargor (including those applications described in Part 2 of Schedule 9 (*Trade Marks*) and those applications which relate to part of the Dennis Intellectual Property)

Trade Mark Chargor means the Company and any other Chargor that owns Trade Mark Property

Trade Mark Property means

- (a) all Trade Marks.
- (b) all Trade Mark Applications,
- (c) any goodwill of a Chargor's business to which any Trade Mark or Trade Mark Application relates, and
- (d) any other right which may arise from, relate to, or be associated with any Trade Mark or Trade Mark Application or, in either case, its use in a Chargor's business

1.2 Construction

- 1 2 1 The principles of construction set out in clause 1 2 (*Construction*) of the Facility Agreement shall apply to this Debenture, insofar as they are relevant to it and subject to any necessary changes, as they apply to the Facility Agreement
- 122 Unless a contrary intention appears, any reference in this Debenture to
 - (a) this **Debenture** is a reference to this Debenture as amended, varied, novated, supplemented and replaced from time to time,
 - (b) a Chargor, the Security Trustee or any Secured Party includes any one or more of its assigns, transferees and successors in title (in the case of a Chargor, so far as any such is permitted), and

- (c) the Security Trustee or any Secured Party (except for the references in Clause 17 (Power of attorney)), includes its duly appointed nominees, attorneys, correspondents, trustees, advisers, agents, delegates and sub-delegates
- 1 2 3 The liabilities of the Chargors under this Debenture are joint and several

1.3 Third party rights

- 1 3 1 Each Secured Party and its officers, employees and agents may enforce any term of this Debenture which purports to confer a benefit on that person, but no other person who is not a party to this Debenture has any right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the Third Parties Act) to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Debenture
- 1 3 2 Notwithstanding any term of any Finance Document, the parties to this Debenture and any Receiver may rescind, vary, waive, release, assign, novate or otherwise dispose of all or any of their respective rights or obligations under this Debenture without the consent of any person who is not a party to this Debenture

1.4 Effect as a deed

This Debenture shall take effect as a deed even if it is signed under hand on behalf of the Security Trustee

1 5 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

The terms of the other Finance Documents and of any side letters between any parties in relation to any Finance Document are incorporated in this Debenture to the extent required to ensure that any purported disposition of an interest in Land contained in this Debenture is a valid disposition in accordance with section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

2 Covenant to pay

The Chargors covenant with the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that they will on demand pay and discharge the Secured Liabilities when due

3 Creation of Security

31 Land

Each Chargor charges

- (a) by way of legal mortgage its interest in the Land referred to opposite its name in Schedule 2 (Land charged by way of legal mortgage), and
- (b) by way of fixed charge any right, title or interest which it has now or may subsequently acquire to or in any other Land

3.2 Shares

Each Chargor mortgages or (if or to the extent that this Debenture does not take effect as a mortgage) charges by way of fixed charge

(a) all Shares, and

(b) all related Distribution Rights

3.3 Investments

Each Chargor mortgages or (if and to the extent that this Debenture does not take effect as a mortgage) charges by way of fixed charge

- (a) all Investments, and
- (b) all related Distribution Rights,

including those held for it by any nominee

3.4 Equipment

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge all Equipment in so far as it is not charged by way of legal mortgage under Clause 3 1 (Land)

3 5 Controlled Debts

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge

- (a) its Controlled Debts, and
- (b) all benefits, rights and Security held in respect of, or to secure the payment of, the Controlled Debts

3.6 Controlled Accounts held with Security Trustee

- 3 6 1 Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge all amounts standing to the credit of each Controlled Account held with the Security Trustee and all of its right, title and interest in and relating to each such Controlled Account
- 3 6 2 Subject to Clause 3 6 3 and regardless of the terms on which moneys are credited to any Controlled Account, during the Security Period
 - no amount standing to the credit of a Controlled Account will be due or accruing due, or be payable to the Chargor; and
 - (b) the Chargor shall not request, demand or claim to be entitled to withdraw any amount from that Controlled Account except (without prejudice to the Secured Parties' rights under this Debenture) as the Security Trustee may from time to time permit
- Clause 3 6 1 shall not apply to the extent it would prejudice any Secured Party's rights under the Finance Documents to any amount standing to the credit of a Controlled Account held with the Security Trustee, including any right of a Secured Party under the Finance Documents to make a withdrawal from such a Controlled Account.

3.7 Other Controlled Accounts

Each Chargor assigns absolutely all amounts standing to the credit of each Controlled Account held with a person other than the Security Trustee and all of its right, title and interest in and relating to each such Controlled Account

3.8 Intellectual Property

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge all its Intellectual Property, including, where a Chargor is a Trade Mark Chargor

- (a) the Trade Mark Property which belongs to it now or at any time during the Security Period, and
- (b) all fees, royalties and other rights of every kind deriving from the Trade Mark Property

3.9 Goodwill

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge its goodwill

3 10 Uncalled capital

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge its uncalled capital

3 11 Authorisations

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge the benefit of all Authorisations held by it in relation to any Security Asset

3.12 Derivative Contracts

The Chargor charges by way of fixed charge its right to receive all moneys payable under any Derivative Contract

3 13 Assigned Agreements

- 3 13 1 Each Chargor assigns absolutely all its rights and interests under the Assigned Agreements to which it is party
- 3 13 2 Until an Event of Default occurs, but subject to Clause 7 5 (Assigned Agreements and Insurances), the relevant Chargor may continue to deal with the counterparties to the relevant Assigned Agreements

3.14 Insurances

- 3 14 1 Each Chargor assigns absolutely all its rights and interests in the Insurances
- 3 14 2 Until an Event of Default occurs, but subject to Clause 7 5 (Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts and Insurances), the Chargors may continue to deal with the counterparties to the Insurances

3.15 Contractual rights

Each Chargor charges by way of fixed charge all its rights under all deeds and agreements to which it is a party other than.

 the Assigned Agreements which are effectively assigned by Clause 3 13 (Assigned Agreements), and (b) the Derivative Contracts

3.16 Other assets

- 3 16 1 Each Chargor charges by way of floating charge all its present and future business, undertaking and assets which are not effectively mortgaged, charged by way of fixed charge or assigned under this Clause 3
- 3 16 2 Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 shall apply to any floating charge created by this Debenture

3.17 Trust

- 3 17 1 Subject to Clause 3 17 2, if or to the extent that for any reason the assignment or charging of any Security Asset is prohibited, the relevant Chargor holds it on trust for the Security Trustee
- 3 17 2 If the reason referred to in Clause 3 17.1 is that
 - (a) a consent or waiver must be obtained, or
 - (b) a condition must be satisfied,

then

- (i) subject to Clause 3 17 3, the Chargor shall apply for the consent or waiver;
- (ii) the Chargor shall use all reasonable endeavours to satisfy the condition,

in each case within 14 days of the date of this Debenture or, if the Security Asset is acquired after the date of this Debenture, within 14 days of the date of acquisition

- 3 17 3 Where the consent or waiver is not to be unreasonably withheld, the Chargor shall
 - (a) use all reasonable endeavours to obtain it as soon as possible, and
 - (b) keep the Security Trustee informed of the progress of the negotiations to obtain it
- 3 17 4 On the waiver or consent being obtained, or the condition being satisfied, the Security Asset shall be mortgaged, charged or assigned (as appropriate) under this Clause 3 and, in relation to such Security Asset, the trust referred to in Clause 3 17 1 shall terminate

4 Nature of Security created

4.1 General

The Security created under this Debenture is created

- (a) as a continuing security to secure the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities.
- (b) (except in the case of assets which are the subject of a legal mortgage under this Debenture) over all present and future assets of the kind described which are owned

by the relevant Chargor and, to the extent that it does not own those assets, shall extend to any right or interest which it may have in them,

- (c) In favour of the Security Trustee as trustee for the Secured Parties, and
- (d) with full title guarantee

4 2 Security over Derivative Contracts

The Security created under this Debenture over any Derivative Contract shall apply net of any set-off or combination of amounts owed under, and in accordance with the terms of, that Derivative Contract

5 Conversion of floating charge

5.1 Conversion on notice

Subject to Clause 5.2 (*Limitation*), the Security Trustee may by notice to a Chargor at any time during the Security Period convert the floating charge created by that Chargor under this Debenture into a fixed charge in respect of any Security Asset specified in that notice if

- (a) an Event of Default/a Default is continuing, or
- (b) the Security Trustee reasonably considers that Security Asset to be in danger of being seized, attached, charged, taken possession of or sold under any form of distress, sequestration, execution or other process or otherwise to be in jeopardy

5.2 Limitation

Clause 5 1 (*Conversion on notice*) shall not apply by reason only of a moratorium being obtained, or anything being done with a view to a moratorium being obtained, under section 1A of the Insolvency Act 1986

5.3 Automatic conversion

The floating charge created by a Chargor under this Debenture will convert automatically into fixed charges

- (a) If the Security Trustee receives notice of an intention to appoint an administrator of that Chargor,
- (b) If any steps are taken, (including the presentation of a petition, the passing of a resolution or the making of an application) to appoint a liquidator, provisional liquidator, administrator or Receiver in respect of that Chargor over all or any part of its assets, or if such person is appointed,
- (c) if that Chargor creates or attempts to create Security over all or any of the Security Assets, other than Permitted Security,
- (d) on the crystallisation of any other floating charge over the Security Assets,
- (e) If any person seizes, attaches, charges, takes possession of or sells any Security Asset under any form of distress, sequestration, execution or other process, or attempts to do so, and

(f) in any other circumstances prescribed by law

6 Representations and warranties

61 General

The Security Trustee has entered into this Debenture in reliance on the representations of each Chargor set out in this Clause 6, and each Chargor or, in the case of Clause 6 5 (*Trade Marks*) each Trade Mark Chargor, warrants to the Security Trustee on the date of this Debenture, as set out in this Clause 6

62 Land

All Land beneficially owned by it is described opposite its name in Schedule 2 (Land charged by way of legal mortgage)

6.3 Shares

- 6.3.1 All Shares beneficially owned by it are described opposite its name in Schedule 3 (Shares)
- 6 3 2 All of the Shares and, to the extent applicable, all Investments are fully paid

6.4 Accounts

As at the date of this Debenture, no Chargor holds any account with a bank or financial institution other than

- (a) the Controlled Accounts (if any),
- (b) the Holding Accounts (if any), and
- (c) the Current Accounts set out in Schedule 7

6.5 Trade Marks

- 6 5 1 It is the legal and beneficial proprietor of each Trade Mark described opposite its name in Part 1 of Schedule 9 (*Trade Marks*) and Schedule 10 (*Intellectual Property Rights*) and it is the legal, beneficial and registered proprietor of each Trade Mark described opposite its name in Schedule 11 (*Material Trade Marks*) and it does not legally or beneficially own any Trade Mark other than those listed opposite its name in Part 1 of Schedule 9 (*Trade Marks*), Schedule 10 (*Intellectual Property Rights*) and Schedule 11 (*Material Trade Marks*)
- It is not aware of any reason why any Material Trade Mark may for any reason be invalid or incapable of being the subject of the Security created by this Debenture. It is not aware of any reason why any Trade Mark (other than a Material Trade Mark) may for any reason be invalid or incapable of being the subject of the Security created by this Debenture, where such invalidity or inability to be subject to the Security created by this Debenture would, or would be reasonably likely to, have a Material Adverse Effect.

653 Either.

(a) It is the applicant for each Trade Mark Application described opposite its name in Part 2 of Schedule 9 (*Trade Marks*) and Schedule 10 (*Intellectual Property Rights*), or

- (b) each Trade Mark Application described opposite its name in Schedule 10 (Intellectual Property Rights) is in the name of Felix Dennis and has been assigned to it under the IP Sales Agreement
- 6 5 4 It is not aware of any reason why its entitlement so to make any Trade Mark Application should be challenged where such challenge would, or would be reasonably likely to, have a Material Adverse Effect
- 6 5 5 To the best of its knowledge, there is no reason why any Trade Mark Application will not proceed to registration
- 6 5 6 It is not aware of any conduct, action or lack of action which will or may have the effect of prejudicing the validity of any Trade Mark Property relating to a Material Trade Mark or adversely affecting its value. It is not aware of any conduct, action or lack of action which will or may have the effect of prejudicing the validity of any Trade Mark Property relating to a Trade Mark which is not a Material Trade Mark or adversely affecting its value where such conduct, action or lack of action would, or would be reasonably likely to, have a Material Adverse Effect
- 6 5 7 Other than as disclosed in writing to the Security Trustee on or before the date of this Debenture
 - (a) It is not restricted in any material way in its use or exercise of any Trade Mark Property other than by way of licencing agreements (including the IP Licencing Agreement) it has entered into on arm's length terms in its ordinary course of trading, and
 - (b) to the best of its knowledge, information and belief (having made all reasonable enquiries), there are no licences, agreements (whether registered user agreements or otherwise) (apart from the IP Licensing Agreement and other licencing agreements entered into on arm's length terms in its ordinary course of trading) or Security (other than in favour of the Security Trustee) which relate to or affect any Trade Mark Property or the Security created by this Debenture
- 6 5 8 It is not aware of any claim from any third party relating to ownership of any Material Trade Mark, or of any claim that any Material Trade Mark infringes any trade mark (whether registered or unregistered) or any other Intellectual Property of any third party. It is not aware of any claim from any third party relating to ownership of any Trade Mark (other than a Material Trade Mark) or Trade Mark Application, or of any claim that any Trade Mark (other than a Material Trade Mark) or Trade Mark Application infringes any trade mark (whether registered or unregistered) or any other Intellectual Property of any third party where such claim would, or would be reasonably likely to, have a Material Adverse Effect.
- 6.6 Insurances
- 6 6 1 It is the legal and beneficial owner of each Insurance to which it is a party
- 6 6 2 All premiums and other moneys payable in respect of each Insurance have been duly and promptly paid in full
- 6 6 3 Each Insurance is in full force and effect
- 6 6 4 It has not has made any false declaration or mis-statement in support of obtaining any Insurance

6 6 5 It has disclosed to the insurers of each Insurance all material facts

6.7 Repetition

The representations and warranties set out in this Clause 6 shall survive the execution of this Debenture and (other than the representation and warranty in Clause 6.4 (*Accounts*)) are deemed to be repeated by reference to the facts and circumstances then existing on each date on which the Repeating Representations are deemed to be repeated

7 Positive covenants

The covenants in this Clause 7 remain in force from the date of this Debenture until the expiry of the Security Period

7.1 Preservation of the Security Assets

Each Chargor shall

- (a) keep all Land, all Equipment and all other tangible assets which form part of the Security Assets in the same or better condition as that in which it is on the date of this Debenture and permit the Security Trustee free access at all reasonable times and on reasonable notice to view their state and condition,
- (b) preserve, maintain and renew as and when necessary all Intellectual Property which form part of the Security Assets,
- (c) observe and perform all covenants, undertakings, laws and regulations from time to time affecting any Security Asset or the use or enjoyment of it,
- (d) pay all Tax, rents, rates, duties, fees, charges, assessments, impositions, calls, instalments and outgoings which are properly payable at any time during the Security Period in respect of any Security Asset or by the owner or occupier of it (and if it fails to pay that amount when due, the Security Trustee may pay it),
- (e) notify the Security Trustee of any action commenced by a third party to seize, attach, charge, take possession of or sell any Security Asset which (to the best of its knowledge and belief) has been started or threatened, and
- (f) at its own cost, defend any proceedings (including proceedings to seize, attach, charge, take possession of or sell) brought by a third party relating to any Security Asset

72 Land

- 7 2 1 Each Chargor shall promptly notify the Security Trustee in writing if it
 - (a) intends to acquire any estate or interest in Land, or
 - (b) acquires any estate or interest in Land
- 7 2 2 Each Chargor shall remedy any material defect or want of repair promptly after service by the Security Trustee of notice of the defect or want of repair
- 7 2 3 Each Chargor shall give immediate notice in writing to the Security Trustee if

- (a) It receives any notice under section 146 of the Act, or
- (b) any proceedings are commenced against it for the forfeiture of any lease of any Land
- 7 2 4 If a Chargor acquires any freehold or leasehold property after the date of this Debenture it shall
 - (a) immediately on request by the Security Trustee and at the cost of that Chargor, execute and deliver to the Security Trustee a legal mortgage in favour of the Security Trustee of that property in any form which the Security Trustee may require,
 - (b) If the title to that freehold or leasehold property is registered at the Land Registry or required to be so registered, apply to the Land Registry for registration of this Security, and
 - (c) If applicable, ensure that the provisions of Clause 16.1 (Application to Land Registrar) are complied with in relation to that legal mortgage
- 7 2 5 If the consent of the landlord in whom the reversion of a lease is vested is required for a Chargor to execute a legal mortgage over it, that Chargor shall
 - (a) not be required to perform that obligation unless and until it has obtained the landlord's consent, and
 - (b) use its reasonable endeavours to obtain the landlord's consent
- 726 Each Chargor shall
 - (a) perform all its obligations under any law or regulation in any way related to or affecting its Land, except to the extent that non-performance of those obligations would not materially adversely affect the value or marketability of any of its Land, and
 - (b) must, within 14 days after receipt by it of any material application, requirement, order or notice served or given by any public or local or any other authority with respect to its Land (or any part of it)
 - (i) deliver a copy to the Security Trustee, and
 - (ii) Inform the Security Trustee of the steps taken or proposed to be taken to comply with the relevant requirements
- 7 2 7 Following an Event of Default or, in respect of any Land acquired after the date of this Debenture, upon the request of the Security Trustee, each Chargor shall
 - (a) grant the Security Trustee or its lawyers on request all facilities within the power of that Chargor to enable the Security Trustee or its lawyers (at the expense of that Chargor) to
 - (i) carry out investigations of title to the Land, and
 - (ii) make such enquines in relation to any part of the Land as a prudent mortgagee might carry out, and

(b) If reasonably required by the Security Trustee, provide it with a report on title of that Chargor to the Land concerning those items which may properly be sought to be covered by a prudent mortgagee in a lawyer's report of that nature

7.3 Accounts

- 7 3 1 If any Chargor opens or otherwise acquires any Account after the date of this Debenture, it shall notify the Security Trustee immediately
- 7 3 2 After executing this Debenture (or in the case of any Account opened after the date of this Debenture, after the date on which that Account is opened), each Chargor shall
 - (a) In respect of its Controlled Accounts (if any), promptly give notice to the Account Bank in the form set out in Part 1 of Schedule 8 (Forms of letter to and from Account Bank) and deliver to the Security Trustee a certified copy of that notice,
 - (b) In respect of its Holdings Accounts (if any) for which the Account Bank is not the Security Trustee, promptly give notice to the Account Bank in the form set out in Schedule 8Part 1 of Schedule 8 (Forms of letter to and from Account Bank) and deliver to the Security Trustee a certified copy of that notice,
 - (c) In respect of each of its Current Accounts (if any) for which the Account Bank is not the Security Trustee, promptly give notice to the Account Bank in the form set out in Schedule 8Part 2 of Schedule 8 (Forms of letter to and from Account Bank) and deliver to the Security Trustee a certified copy of that notice, and
 - (d) use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that the Account Bank acknowledges each notice served on it pursuant to Clauses 7 3 2(a), 7 3 2(b) or 7 3 2(c) in the form set out in Schedule 8Part 3 of Schedule 8 (Forms of Letter to and from Account Bank) or other form approved by the Security Trustee
- 7 3 3 Subject to the Facility Agreement, each Chargor may receive, withdraw or transfer any credit balance on any Holding Account or Current Account unless the Security Trustee notifies it to the contrary at any time when an Event of Default has occurred which is continuing
- 7 3 4 In addition to any rights of the Agent or the Security Trustee under the Facility Agreement, at any time after an Event of Default has occurred which is continuing, the Security Trustee may
 - (a) apply any amount standing to the credit of any Holding Account or Current Account or any amount it receives in respect of any such Account towards any amounts due and payable under the Finance Documents, and
 - (b) may notify the Account Bank at which any Holding Account or Current Account is held that the Chargors' rights (or any of them) under Clause 7 3 3 cease to apply

7 4 Shares and Investments

- 7 4 1 If any Chargor forms or acquires any Subsidiary after the date of this Debenture, it shall notify the Security Trustee immediately
- 7 4 2 Each Chargor shall (in the case of the Shares specified in Schedule 3 (Shares) and its Investments as at the date of this Debenture) immediately after entering into this Debenture or (in the case of any other Shares and Investments) on such later date on which any Shares

or investments are issued to or otherwise acquired by that Chargor, deposit with the Security Trustee, in respect of or in connection with its Shares and Investments

- (a) all stock and share certificates and documents of or evidencing title,
- (b) signed undated transfers, completed in blank and, if the Security Trustee so requires, pre-stamped, and
- (c) any other documents which the Security Trustee may from time to time require for perfecting its title, or the title of any purchaser,

all of which will be held by the Security Trustee at the expense and risk of the Chargor

7 4 3 Each Chargor shall

- (a) promptly following receipt, forward to the Security Trustee copies of all notices, documents and other communications received in connection with the Shares and Investments.
- (b) promptly copy to the Security Trustee, and comply with, all requests for information which is within its knowledge and which are made under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 or any similar provision contained in any articles of association or other constitutional document relating to any of its Shares and Investments, and
- (c) comply with all other conditions and obligations assumed by it in respect of any of the Shares and Investments where failure to so comply would adversely affect the interests of the Secured Parties

7 5 Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts and Insurances

7 5 1 Each Chargor shall

- (a) perform all its obligations under the Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts and Insurances in a diligent and timely manner;
- (b) promptly after the execution of this Debenture, or (as the case may be) promptly after the execution of any Assigned Agreement or Derivative Contract entered into after the date of this Debenture, give notice to the other parties to the Assigned Agreements and Derivative Contracts
 - (i) In the case of Assigned Agreements substantially in the form set out in Schedule 4 (Form of notice for Assigned Agreements), and
 - (ii) in the case of Derivative Contracts, substantially in the form set out in Schedule 6 (Form of notice for Derivative Contracts),

and deliver to the Security Trustee a copy of each notice, and

(c) procure that each party served with a notice under paragraph (b) above countersigns and returns it to the Security Trustee within 14 days of the execution of this Debenture or in the case of Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts entered into after the date of this Debenture, within 14 days of the date of the execution of the Assigned Agreement or Derivative Contract

- 7 5 2 After the occurrence of an Event of Default, each Chargor shall
 - (a) promptly give notice to the other parties to any Insurances, substantially in the form set out in Schedule 5 (*Form of notice for Insurances*), and deliver to the Security Trustee a copy of each notice, and
 - (b) procure that each party served with a notice under paragraph (a) above countersigns and returns it to the Security Trustee within 14 days of the occurrence of that Event of Default
- 7 5 3 While no Event of Default is continuing, the relevant Chargor may exercise all its rights in respect of the Assigned Agreements, the Derivative Contracts and the Insurances (in each case to which it is a party) including (subject to the Facility Agreement and the Subordination Agreement) receiving and exercising all rights relating to proceeds of those Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts and Insurances
- 7 5 4 Each Chargor which is the borrower of an Intra-Group Loan acknowledges receipt of notice of assignment under Clause 3 13 (Assigned Agreements) of the relevant Intra-Group Loan Agreement

7.6 Trade Marks

Each Trade Mark Chargor shall at all times during the Security Period promptly notify the Security Trustee if it receives notification, or otherwise becomes aware, of

- (a) any actual, alleged, threatened or suspected infringement of any Trade Mark,
- (b) any actual, alleged, threatened or suspected infringement of any third party's trade marks or other intellectual or other rights arising from the use of any Trade Mark, or
- (c) any actual, threatened or suspected cancellation or other legal action in respect of any Trade Mark

8 Negative covenants

The covenants in this Clause 8 remain in force from the date of this Debenture until the expiry of the Security Period

8.1 Disposals

No Chargor shall enter into a single transaction or a series of transactions (whether related or not), whether voluntary or involuntary and whether at the same time or over a period of time, to sell, lease, transfer, loan, nor otherwise dispose of any Security Asset, nor enter into an agreement to make any such disposal other than a Permitted Disposal

8 2 Negative pledge

No Chargor shall create or permit to subsist any Security over any Security Asset except for Permitted Security

8.3 Preservation of the Security Assets

No Chargor shall, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee

- (a) enter into any onerous obligation or restriction affecting any Security Asset, or
- (b) In relation to any Land forming part of the Security Assets
 - (i) part with possession of it, confer on any other person any right or licence to occupy it or grant any licence to assign, sub-let or create any Security over it,
 - (ii) exercise any of the powers conferred by sections 99 and 100 of the Act of leasing, letting, entering into agreements for leases or lettings or accepting or agreeing to accept surrenders of leases,
 - vary, assign or otherwise dispose of or allow to be forfeited any leasehold interest,
 - (iv) agree any rent review,
 - (v) make any structural or material alteration, or do or allow anything to be done which falls within the definition of development in section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
 - (vi) allow any person other than itself to be registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 as proprietor, or create or permit to arise any interest which overrides under the Land Registration Act 2002 (and each Chargor shall reimburse the Security Trustee for its reasonable costs of lodging (aa) a caution against first registration of the title to that Land or (bb) if that Land is unregistered, a land charge),
 - (vii) make an application, consent to or acquiesce in the application by any third party, to the Land Registry to enter any matter on the register of title, or
- (c) in relation to any uncalled capital of the Chargor, call it up or receive it in advance of calls unless the Security Trustee otherwise directs, nor apply it, when paid, otherwise than in payment of the Secured Liabilities or as the Security Trustee otherwise directs, or
- (d) take any Security in connection with its liability under this Debenture from any guarantor of, or provider of Security for, any of the Secured Liabilities

8.4 Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts and Insurances

No Chargor shall, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee

- (a) make or agree to make any amendments to,
- (b) waive any of its rights under; or
- (c) exercise any right to terminate,

any of the Assigned Agreements, Derivative Contracts or the Insurances

8.5 Trade Marks

No Trade Mark Chargor shall

- (a) permit any Material Trade Mark to lapse for non-payment of any renewal or other fee necessary to maintain its registration and validity or allow any thing to be done or left undone the effect of which will, or may be to, imperil or prejudice any Material Trade Mark, its registration, subsistence, validity, reputation or integrity,
- (b) permit any Material Trade Mark to fall into disuse or to be used in such a way that they are put at risk by becoming generic or by being identified as disreputable in any way,
- (c) without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee, assign, licence, sub-licence, sever, dispose of or otherwise part with control of a Material Trade Mark or Trade Mark Application provided that a Trade Mark Chargor may enter into licencing agreements relating to any Trade Mark and/or Trade Mark Application entered into on arm's length terms in its ordinary course of trading,
- (d) change the specification of any Material Trade Mark without first notifying the Security Trustee or permit any disclaimer, condition, restriction or memorandum to be entered on the Register of Trade Marks the effect of which will or may be to detrimentally affect the value of any Material Trade Mark,
- (e) without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee (acting on the instructions of the Majority Lenders (acting reasonably)), fail to continue to prosecute any Trade Mark Application to registration or fail to take any steps necessary to ensure so far as possible that any Trade Mark Application is accepted for registration by the Trade Mark Registry, or
- (f) do or cause or permit to be done anything which may in any way depreciate, jeopardise or otherwise prejudice the value to the Security Trustee of any Trade Mark Property relating to a Material Trade Mark and/or the Security over any Trade Mark Property relating to a Material Trade Mark created by Clause 3 8 (Intellectual Property)

9 Voting and other rights

9.1 Before demand by the Security Trustee

Until such time as the Security Trustee makes a demand under Clause 9.2, each Chargor may exercise any of its voting and other rights and powers attached to the Shares and Investments but shall not do so in a manner which may

- (a) have the effect of changing the terms of issue of any of the Shares or Investments (or any class of them) or any of the Distribution Rights relating to them,
- (b) impair the value of any of the Shares or Investments,
- (c) prejudice the security created by this Debenture, or
- (d) otherwise prejudice the interests of the Secured Parties under the Finance Documents

9.2 After demand by the Security Trustee

After the Security Trustee so demands following the occurrence of a an Event of Default, each Chargor shall

- (a) promptly pay over to the Security Trustee all moneys arising from the Distribution Rights relating to the Shares and Investments which it may receive; and
- (b) exercise all voting and other rights and powers attached to the Shares and Investments in any manner which the Security Trustee may direct

9.3 Completion of transfers

At any time following the occurrence of a Default which is continuing the Security Trustee may, without notice to any Chargor

- (a) complete and date any of the transfers and other documents referred to in Clauses 7 4 2(b) and 7 4 2(c), and
- (b) transfer all or any of the Shares or Investments to itself

10 Enforcement

10.1 When Security becomes enforceable

The Security created by a Chargor under this Debenture shall become enforceable

- (a) on the occurrence of an Event of Default, or
- (b) If any Chargor so requests

10.2 Powers on enforcement

At any time after the Security created by a Chargor under this Debenture has become enforceable, the Security Trustee may (without prejudice to any other of its rights and remedies and without notice to the Chargor) do all or any of the following

- (a) exercise all the powers and rights conferred on mortgagees by the Act, as varied and extended by this Debenture, without the restrictions contained in sections 103 or 109(1) of the Act,
- (b) exercise the power of leasing, letting, entering into agreements for leases or lettings or accepting or agreeing to accept surrenders of leases in relation to any Security Asset, without the restrictions imposed by sections 99 and 100 of the Act,
- (c) to the extent that any Security Asset constitutes Financial Collateral, as defined in the Regulations, appropriate it and transfer the title in and to it to the Security Trustee insofar as not already transferred, subject to paragraphs (1) and (2) of Regulation 18,
- (d) subject to Clause 11.1.1 (*Method of appointment and removal*), appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver or Receivers of all or any of the Security Assets, and
- (e) appoint an administrator of any Chargor

10.3 Disposal of the Security Assets

In exercising the powers referred to in Clause 10 2(a) (*Powers on enforcement*), the Security Trustee or any Receiver may sell or dispose of all or any of the Security Assets at the times,

in the manner and order, on the terms and conditions and for the consideration determined by it

10.4 Application of moneys

- 10 4 1 The Security Trustee or any Receiver shall apply moneys received by them under this Debenture after the Security created under this Debenture has become enforceable in the following order
 - (a) first, in or towards the payment pro rata of, or the provision pro rata for, any unpaid costs and expenses of the Security Trustee and any Receiver under this Debenture or which are incidental to any Receiver's appointment, together with interest at the Default Rate (both before and after judgment) from the date those amounts became due until the date they are irrevocably paid in full.
 - (b) secondly, in or towards the payment pro rata of, or the provision pro rata for, any unpaid fees, commission or remuneration of the Security Trustee and any Receiver,
 - (c) **thirdly**, in or towards the discharge of all liabilities having priority to the Secured Liabilities,
 - (d) **fourthly**, in or towards the discharge of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the Facility Agreement, and
 - (e) **fifthly**, in the payment of any surplus to the relevant Chargor or other person entitled to it,

and section 109(8) of the Act shall not apply

- 10 4 2 The Chargors shall hold on trust for the Security Trustee all moneys received by virtue of the Insurances and shall apply those moneys as the Facility Agreement requires.
- 10 4 3 Clause 10 4 1 will override any appropriation made by a Chargor

11 Appointment and powers of Receivers

11.1 Method of appointment and removal

- 11 1 1 The Security Trustee may not appoint a Receiver by reason only of a moratorium being obtained, or anything being done with a view to a moratorium being obtained, under section 1A of the Insolvency Act 1986
- 11.1.2 Every appointment or removal of a Receiver, of any delegate or of any other person by the Security Trustee pursuant to this Debenture may be made in writing under the hand of any officer or manager of the Security Trustee (subject to any requirement for a court order in the removal of an administrative receiver)

11.2 Powers of Receiver

Every Receiver shall have all the powers

(a) of the Security Trustee under this Debenture,

- (b) conferred by the Act on mortgagees in possession and on receivers appointed under the Act,
- (c) which are specified in Schedule 1 of the Insolvency Act 1986 in relation to, and to the extent applicable to, the Security Assets or any of them (whether or not the Receiver is an administrative receiver within the meaning of that Act), and
- (d) in relation to any Security Asset, which he would have if he were its only and absolute beneficial owner

11.3 Joint or several

If two or more persons are appointed as Receivers of the same assets, they may act jointly and/or severally so that (unless any instrument appointing them specifies to the contrary) each of them may exercise individually all the powers and discretions conferred on Receivers by this Debenture

11.4 Receiver as agent

Every Receiver shall be the agent of the relevant Chargor which shall be solely responsible for his acts and defaults and for the payment of his remuneration

11.5 Receiver's remuneration

Every Receiver shall be entitled to remuneration for his services at a rate to be fixed by agreement between him and the Security Trustee, and the maximum rate specified in section 109(6) of the Act shall not apply

12 Protection of purchasers

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Trustee or any Receiver shall be bound or concerned

- (a) to see or enquire whether the right of the Security Trustee or any Receiver to exercise any of the powers conferred by this Debenture has arisen or not,
- (b) with the propriety of the exercise or purported exercise of those powers, or
- (c) with the application of any moneys paid to the Security Trustee, to any Receiver or to any other person

13 Protection of the Secured Parties

13.1 Exclusion of liability

None of the Security Trustee, the Secured Parties or any of their respective officers or employees shall have any responsibility or liability

- (a) for any action taken, or any failure to take any action, in relation to all or any of the Security Assets,
- (b) to account as mortgagee in possession or for any loss upon realisation of any Security Asset,

- (c) for any loss resulting from any fluctuation in exchange rates in connection with any purchase of currencies under Clause 18 (*Currency*), or
- (d) for the loss or destruction of, or damage to, any of the Security Assets, or to any documents of or evidencing title to them, which are in the possession or held to the order of any such person (and which will be held by such persons at the expense and risk of the Chargors),
- (e) for any other default or omission in relation to all or any of the Security Assets for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable.

except in the case of gross negligence or wilful misconduct on the part of that person

13.2 General indemnity

- 13 2 1 Each Chargor shall indemnify the Security Trustee, the Secured Parties and their respective officers and employees against all actions, proceedings, demands, claims, costs, expenses, and other liabilities incurred by them in respect of all or any of the following
 - any act or omission by any of them in relation to all or any of the Security Assets,
 - (b) any payment relating to or in respect of all or any of the Security Assets which becomes payable at any time by any of them,
 - (c) any stamp, registration or similar Tax or duty which becomes payable in connection with the entry into, or the performance or enforcement of, this Debenture,
 - (d) carrying out or purporting to carry out any of the rights, powers and discretions conferred on them by or permitted under this Debenture, and
 - (e) any breach by that Chargor of any of its covenants or other obligations to the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party,

except in the case of gross negligence or wilful misconduct on the part of that person

13 2 2 Each Chargor shall pay interest at the Default Rate on the sums payable under this Clause from the date on which the liability was incurred to the date of actual payment (both before and after judgment)

13.3 Indemnity out of the Security Assets

The Security Trustee, the Secured Parties and their respective officers and employees shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the Security Assets in respect of the actions, proceedings, demands, claims, costs, expenses and liabilities referred to in Clause 13.2 (*General indemnity*)

14 Preservation of Security

14.1 Reinstatement

If any payment by a Chargor or discharge given by the Security Trustee (whether in respect of the obligations of any Obligor or any Security for those obligations or otherwise) is avoided or reduced as a result of insolvency, liquidation, administration or any similar event

- (a) the liabilities of the Chargor and the Security created by the Chargor under this Debenture shall continue as if the payment, discharge, avoidance or reduction had not occurred, and
- (b) the Secured Parties shall be entitled to recover the value or amount of that Security or payment from the Chargor, as if the payment, discharge, avoidance or reduction had not occurred

14.2 Walver of defences

Neither the Security created by this Debenture nor the obligations of any Chargor under this Debenture will be affected by an act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause, would reduce, release or prejudice that Security or any of those obligations (whether or not known to that Chargor, the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party) including

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Obligor or other person,
- (b) the release of any Obligor or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any person,
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal, enforcement or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or Security over, assets of any Obligor or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any Security,
- (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of an Obligor or any other person,
- (e) any amendment (however fundamental), replacement, variation, novation, assignment or the avoidance or termination of a Finance Document or any other document or Security,
- (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of, or any Security created by, any person under any Finance Document or any other document, or
- (g) any insolvency, liquidation, administration or similar procedure

14.3 Chargor intent

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 14 2 (*Waiver of defences*), each Chargor expressly confirms that it intends that the Security created by this Debenture shall extend from time to time to any (however fundamental) variation, increase, extension or addition of or to any of the Finance Documents and/or any facility or amount made available under any of the Finance Documents for the purposes of or in connection with any of the following

- (a) acquisitions of any nature,
- (b) increasing working capital,
- (c) enabling investor distributions to be made,
- (d) carrying out restructurings,

- (e) refinancing existing facilities,
- (f) refinancing any other indebtedness,
- (g) making facilities available to new borrowers,
- (h) any other variation or extension of the purposes for which any such facility or amount might be made available from time to time, and
- (i) any fees, costs and/or expenses associated with any of the foregoing

14.4 Immediate recourse

Each Chargor waives any right it may have of first requiring any Secured Party (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or enforce any other rights or Security or claim payment from any person before claiming from the Chargors under this Debenture. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any provision of a Finance Document to the contrary

14.5 Appropriations

During the Security Period each Secured Party may

- (a) refrain from applying or enforcing any moneys, Security or rights held or received by it (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) in respect of the Secured Liabilities, or, subject to Clause 10.4.1 (Application of moneys), apply and enforce the same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against the Secured Liabilities or otherwise) and no Chargor shall be entitled to the benefit of the same, and
- (b) hold in an interest-bearing suspense account any moneys received from any Chargor or on account of the Secured Liabilities

14.6 Deferral of Chargor's rights

During the Security Period and unless the Security Trustee otherwise directs, no Chargor shall exercise any rights which it may have by reason of performance by it of its obligations under this Debenture or the enforcement of the Security created by this Debenture

- (a) to receive or claim payment from, or be indemnified by an Obligor,
- to claim any contribution from any guarantor of, or provider of Security in respect of, any Obligor's obligations under the Finance Documents,
- (c) to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any rights of any Secured Party under any Finance Document or of any guarantee or Security taken pursuant to, or in connection with, the Finance Documents by any Secured Party,
- (d) to exercise any right of set-off against any Obligor; and/or
- (e) to claim or prove as a creditor of any Obligor in competition with any Secured Party

14 7 Additional Security

This Debenture is in addition to, is not in any way prejudiced by and shall not merge with any contractual right or remedy or other Security now or in the future held by or available to any Secured Party

14 8 New accounts

If any Secured Party receives notice (actual or otherwise) of any subsequent Security over or affecting all or any of the Security Assets it may open a new account or accounts with the Borrower and, if it does not do so, it shall nevertheless be treated as if it had done so at the time when it received or was deemed to have received notice of that subsequent Security, and as from that time all payments made by the Borrower to that Secured Party

- shall be credited or be treated as having been credited to the new account of the Borrower; and
- (b) shall not operate to reduce the Secured Liabilities at the time when the Secured Party received or was deemed to have received such notice

15 Tacking

For the purposes of section 94(1) of the Act and section 49(3) of the Land Registration Act 2002 the Security Trustee confirms on behalf of the Lenders that the Lenders shall make further advances to the Borrower on the terms and subject to the conditions of the Finance Documents

16 Further assurance

16.1 Registration at Companies House

Each Chargor consents to the registration of this Debenture at Companies House pursuant to Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006

16.2 Application to Land Registrar

Each Chargor consents to the registration against the registered titles specified opposite its name in Schedule 2 (Land charged by way of legal mortgage) of

(a) a restriction in the following terms

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate [or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction] is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated ** [date of Debenture] in favour of The Royal Bank of Scotland pic referred to in the charges register or their conveyancer (Form P)", and

(b) a notice that the Lenders are under an obligation to make further advances on the terms and subject to the conditions of the Finance Documents

16.3 Further action

Each Chargor shall, at its own expense, promptly take any action and sign or execute any further documents which the Security Trustee may require in order to

- (a) give effect to the requirements of this Debenture,
- (b) protect, preserve and perfect the Security intended to be created by or pursuant to this Debenture.
- (c) protect and preserve the ranking of the Security intended to be created by or pursuant to this Debenture with any other Security over any assets of any Chargor; or
- (d) facilitate the realisation of all or any of the Security Assets or the exercise of any rights, powers and discretions conferred on the Security Trustee, any Receiver or any administrator in connection with all or any of the Security Assets,

and any such document may disapply section 93 of the Act

16.4 Deposit of documents

Each Chargor covenants that, on the date of this Debenture and at all times during the Security Period as soon as it receives them (and in any event as soon as the Security Trustee so requests), it shall deposit with the Security Trustee, in respect of or in connection with the Security Assets

- (a) all deeds, certificates and other documents of or evidencing title, and
- (b) any other documents which the Security Trustee may from time to time require for perfecting its title, or the title of any purchaser

16.5 Registration of Trade Marks

16 5 1 Each Trade Mark Chargor shall

- (a) within ten Business Days of the date of this Debenture, apply to the Intellectual Property Office and the Office of Harmonisation in the Internal Market to register the charge created by Clause 3 8 (Intellectual Property) over each Material Trade Mark, and
- (b) pay all fees necessary to make the registrations required to be made under paragraph (a) before the latest time provided for payment
- 16 5 2 Each Trade Mark Chargor acknowledges the right of the Security Trustee, or any duly authorised agent of the Security Trustee, to apply to the Intellectual Property Office and the Office of Harmonisation in the Internal Market to register the charge created by Clause 3 8 (Intellectual Property) over each Material Trade Mark on or after any failure by the relevant Chargor to register the charge pursuant to Clause 16 5 1(a)

16.6 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994

The covenant set out in section 2(1)(b) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 shall extend to the provisions set out in this Clause 16

17 Power of attorney

Each Chargor irrevocably and by way of security appoints each of

- (a) the Security Trustee,
- (b) any delegate or sub-delegate of, or other person nominated in writing by, an officer of the Security Trustee, and
- (c) any Receiver,

jointly and severally as the Chargor's attorney, in the Chargor's name, on its behalf and in such manner as the attorney may in its or his absolute discretion think fit following the occurrence of an Event of Default or following the failure by the Chargor to comply with a request from the Security Trustee, to take any action and sign or execute any further documents which the Chargor is required to take, sign or execute in accordance with this Debenture. The Chargor agrees, promptly on the request of the Security Trustee or any Receiver, to ratify and confirm all such actions taken and documents signed or executed.

18 Currency

18.1 The Spot Rate

In this Clause 18, the **Spot Rate** means, in relation to the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party, the spot rate of exchange of that Secured Party for the purchase of any currency with any other currency in the London foreign exchange market.

18.2 Conversion of moneys received

The Security Trustee or any other Secured Party may convert any moneys received, recovered or realised in any currency under this Debenture (including the proceeds of any previous conversion under this Clause 18.2) from their existing currency into any other currency, by purchasing that other currency at the Spot Rate

19 Discharge of Security

Upon the irrevocable and unconditional payment and discharge in full of the Secured Liabilities, the Security Trustee shall, unless any third party has any subrogation or other rights in respect of the Security created by this Debenture at that time, or shall procure that its appointees will, at the request and cost of the Chargors

- (a) release the Security Assets from this Debenture, and
- (b) re-assign to the relevant Chargor those Security Assets that have been assigned to the Security Trustee under Clause 3 (*Creation of Security*)

Section 93 of the Act shall not apply to this Debenture

20 Costs and expenses

20.1 Amendment costs

If any Chargor requests an amendment, waiver, consent or release of or in relation to this Debenture, the Chargor shall, within three Business Days of demand, reimburse the Security

Trustee for the amount of all costs and expenses (including legal fees) reasonably incurred by it in responding to, evaluating, negotiating or complying with that request or requirement

20.2 Enforcement costs

The Chargors shall, within three Business Days of demand, pay to the Security Trustee or any Receiver the amount of all costs and expenses (including legal fees) incurred by the Security Trustee or any Receiver in connection with the enforcement of, or the preservation of any rights under, this Debenture or the investigation of any possible Default

21 Additional Chargors

21.1 Delivery of Security Accession Deed

- 21 1 1 The Company may request that any Subsidiary of it or another Chargor (the **New Chargor**) becomes a Chargor
- 21 1 2 The New Chargor shall become a Chargor if
 - (a) the Company and the New Chargor deliver to the Security Trustee a duly completed and executed Security Accession Deed, and
 - (b) the Company confirms that no Default is continuing or would occur as a result of the New Chargor becoming a Chargor

21.2 Repetition of representations

Delivery of a Security Accession Deed constitutes confirmation by the New Chargor that the Repeating Representations are true and correct to the extent applicable to it as at the date of delivery as if made by reference to the facts and circumstances then existing

22 Notices

22.1 Communications in writing

Any communication to be made under or in connection with this Debenture shall be made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be made by fax or letter

22.2 Addresses

- 22.2.1 The address and fax number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of each party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Debenture is that identified with its name below or any substitute address, fax number or department or officer as either party may notify to the other by not less than five Business Days' notice
- 22 2 2 The addresses referred to in Clause 22 2 1 are
 - (a) The Company

Dennis Holdings Limited 9-11 Kingly Street 2nd Floor London W1B 5PN

Attention Fax

lan Leggett

(b) The Security Trustee

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc 9th Floor 280 Bishopsgate London EC2M 4RB

Attention

Angela Mylrea

Fax

(c) Each Original Chargor

As set out opposite its name in Schedule 1 (Onginal Chargors)

22.3 Delivery

- 22 3 1 Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Debenture will only be effective
 - (a) If by way of fax, when received in legible form, or
 - (b) If by way of letter, (i) when it has been left at the relevant address or (ii) two Business Days (or, in the case of airmail, five Business Days) after being deposited in the post postage prepaid (or, as the case may be, airmail postage prepaid), in an envelope addressed to it at that address,

and, if a particular department or officer is specified as part of its address details provided under Clause 22 (Addresses), if addressed to that department or officer

22 3 2 Any communication or document to be made or delivered to the Security Trustee will be effective only when actually received by the Security Trustee and then only if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer identified in Clause 22 2 2 (or any substitute department or officer as the Security Trustee shall specify for this purpose)

22.4 English language

- 22 4 1 Any notice given under or in connection with this Debenture must be in English
- 22 4 2 All other documents provided under or in connection with this Debenture must be
 - (a) in English, or
 - (b) If not in English, and if so required by the Security Trustee accompanied by a certified English translation and, in this case, the English translation will prevail unless the document is a constitutional, statutory or other official document

23 Calculations and certificates

23.1 Accounts

In any litigation or arbitration proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Debenture, the entries made in the accounts maintained by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party are *prima facie* evidence of the matters to which they relate

23.2 Certificates and determinations

Any certification or determination by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party of a rate or amount under this Debenture is, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the matters to which it relates

24 Partial invalidity

If, at any time, any provision of this Debenture is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under any law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the law of any other jurisdiction will in any way be affected or impaired

25 Remedies and waivers

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Security Trustee, any right or remedy under this Debenture shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy. The rights and remedies provided in this Debenture are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

26 Amendments and waivers

Any term of this Debenture may be amended or waived only with the written consent of the Chargors and the Security Trustee

27 Counterparts

This Debenture may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Debenture

28 Governing law and enforcement

28 1 Governing law

English law governs this Debenture, its interpretation and any non-contractual obligations arising from or connected with it

28.2 Jurisdiction

28 2 1 The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Debenture (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Debenture) (a Dispute)

- 28 2 2 The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no party will argue to the contrary
- 28 2 3 This Clause 28 2 is for the benefit of the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties only As a result, neither the Security Trustee nor any other Secured Party shall be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

28.3 Service of process

28 3 1 Subject to Clause 28 3 3, the address for service of each Chargor in England and Wales under this Clause is

FAO Razwana Akram Simons Muirhead & Burton 8-9 Firth Street London W1D 3JB

- 28 3 2 Without prejudice to any other mode of service allowed under any relevant law, any Service Document relating to proceedings before the English courts may be served on each Chargor at its address for service. That service may be made by pre-paid first class recorded delivery post or any other method allowed by law.
- 28 3 3 If a Chargor wishes to change its address for service to a different address in England or Wales, it may do so by giving the Security Trustee at least 20 Business Days' written notice of its new address for service
- 28 3 4 In this Clause, "Service Document" means any claim form, application notice, judgment, order or other notice of legal process relating to the Debenture

Executed as a deed and delivered on the date appearing at the beginning of this Debenture

Schedule 1 – Original Chargors

Name of Chargor	Registered number (or equivalent, if any)	Notice details	5
Dennis Holdings Limited	06400281	Address	9-11 Kingly Street 2nd Floor London W1B 5PN
		Facsımıle	
		Attention	lan Leggett
Dennis Publishing (UK) Limited	03870844	Address	30 Cleveland Street London W1T 4JD
		Facsimile	
		Attention	Brett Reynolds

Schedule 2 – Land charged by way of legal mortgage

Part 1- Registered Land

Name of Chargor

Description and address

Title number

None

Part 2- Unregistered Land

None

Schedule 3 - Shares

Name of Chargor	Subsidiary	Number and class of shares	Details of nominees (if any) holding legal title to shares
Dennis Publishing (UK) Limited	Dennis Publishing Limited (registration number 01138891)	500,000 ordinary shares of £1 00 each	N/A

Schedule 4 – Form of notice for Assigned Agreements

[On relevant Chargor's notepaper]

[insert name and address of counterparty]

Attenti	on	**		
Date		**		
Dear S	Sirs			
Notice	e of as	signment		
1		fer to the ** [s en us and you (the Agree	, ,	ant Assigned Agreementj dated **
2	We no	tify you that		
	(a)	under a debenture date Bank of Scotland plc (th	=	between, among others, us and The Royal stee) we have assigned to the Security

- Bank of Scotland plc (the Security Trustee) we have assigned to the Security Trustee for the benefit of itself and certain other banks and financial institutions (together with the Security Trustee, the Secured Parties) all our right, title and interest in and to, and all benefits accruing under, the Agreement as security for certain obligations owed to the Secured Parties,
- (b) until you receive written notice to the contrary from the Security Trustee, you may continue to deal with us in relation to the Agreement and credit all moneys to which we are entitled under the Agreement to the following account in our name **

 [insert details of account] After receipt we will cease to have any right to deal with you in relation to the Agreement and from that time you should deal only with the Security Trustee, and
- you are authorised to disclose information relating to the Agreement to the Security

 Trustee on request
- 3 We request that you

To

- (a) after receipt of written notice in accordance with paragraph 2(b), ensure that all moneys to which we are entitled under the Agreement are credited to the account of the Security Trustee specified in that notice (and are not paid to us),
- (b) give the Security Trustee written notice of any breach of the Agreement as soon as you become aware of it, and
- (c) give the Security Trustee not less than 30 days' written notice of your giving notice to terminate the Agreement
- Please sign and return the enclosed copy of this notice to the Security Trustee (with a copy to the Chargor) to confirm that you

- (a) agree to the terms of this notice and to act in accordance with its provisions,
- (b) have not received notice that the Chargor has assigned its rights under the Agreement to a third party or created any other interest (whether by way of security or otherwise) in the Agreement in favour of a third party, and
- (c) have not claimed or exercised, nor do you have any outstanding right to claim or exercise against the Chargor, any right of set-off, counter-claim or other right relating to the Agreement
- 5 The provisions of this notice are governed by English law

Yours faithfully

for and on behalf of [insert name of Chargor]

Copy to Security Trustee

[On acknowledgement copy]

То

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

[address]

Copy to

[insert name and address of Chargor]

We acknowledge receipt of the above notice and confirm the matters set out in paragraph 4

for and on behalf of [insert name of counterparty]

Date

Schedule 5 - Form of notice for Insurances

[On relevant Chargor's notepaper]

То	**	[insert name and address of insurance company]
Attention	**	
Date	**	
Dear Sirs		

Notice of assignment

- 1 We refer to the ** [specify the relevant insurance policy] dated ** between us and you (the Policy)
- 2 We notify you that
 - (a) under a debenture dated ** between, among others, us and The Royal Bank of Scotland pic (the Security Trustee) we have assigned to the Security Trustee for the benefit of itself and certain other banks and financial institutions (together with the Security Trustee, the Secured Parties) all our right, title and interest in and to, and all benefits accruing under, the Policy as security for certain obligations owed to the Secured Parties,
 - (b) we may not agree to amend or terminate the Policy without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,
 - (c) until you receive written notice to the contrary from the Security Trustee, you may continue to deal with us in relation to the Policy and credit all moneys to which we are entitled under the Policy to the following account in our name ** [insert details of account] After receipt we will cease to have any right to deal with you in relation to the Policy and from that time you should deal only with the Security Trustee, and
 - (d) you are authorised to disclose information relating to the Policy to the Security Trustee on request
- 3 We request that you
 - (a) after receipt of written notice in accordance with paragraph 2(c), ensure that all moneys to which we are entitled under the Policy are credited to the account of the Security Trustee specified in that notice (and are not paid to us),
 - (b) note on the Policy the Security Trustee's security interest under the Debenture, and
 - (c) give the Security Trustee not less than 30 day's written notice of your giving notice to terminate the Policy or allowing the Policy to lapse
- Please sign and return the enclosed copy of this notice to the Security Trustee (with a copy to the Chargor) to confirm that you

- (a) agree to the terms of this notice and to act in accordance with its provisions,
- (b) have not received notice that the Chargor has assigned its rights under the Policy to a third party or created any other interest (whether by way of security or otherwise) in the Policy in favour of a third party; and
- (c) have not claimed or exercised, nor do you have any outstanding right to claim or exercise against the Chargor, any right of set-off, counter-claim or other right relating to the Policy
- 5 The provisions of this notice are governed by English law

Yours faithfully

for and on behalf of [insert name of Chargor]

Copy to Security Trustee

[On acknowledgement copy]

To The Royal Bank of Scotland plc [address]

Copy to [insert name and address of Company] [(on behalf of all the Chargors)]

We acknowledge receipt of the above notice and confirm the matters set out in paragraph 4

for and on behalf of [insert name of insurance company]

Date

Schedule 6 - Form of notice for Derivative Contracts

[On relevant Chargor's notepaper]

То		** [insert name and address of counterparty]
Attentio	on	**
Date		**
Dear S	ırs	
Notice	of cha	nrge
1		er to the ** [specify the relevant Derivative Contract] dated ** n us and you (the Agreement)
2	We not	ıfy you that
	(a)	under a debenture dated ** between, among others, us and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc (the Security Trustee) we have granted to the Security Trustee for the benefit of itself and certain other banks and financial institutions (together with the Security Trustee, the Secured Parties) a fixed charge over our right to receive all moneys payable under the Agreement as security for certain obligations owed to the Secured Parties,
	(b)	we may not agree to amend or terminate the Agreement without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee, and
	(c)	you are authorised to disclose information relating to the Agreement to the Security Trustee on request
3	We req	uest that you
	(a)	ensure that all moneys payable to us under the Agreement are credited to an accounnominated by the Security Trustee (and are not paid to us),
	(b)	give the Security Trustee written notice of any breach of the Agreement as soon as you become aware of it, and

give the Security Trustee not less than 30 days' written notice of your giving notice to

Please sign and return the enclosed copy of this notice to the Security Trustee (with a copy to

agree to the terms of this notice and to act in accordance with its provisions, and

terminate the Agreement

the Chargor) to confirm that you

(c)

(a)

	(b)	have not received notice that the Chargor has assigned its rights under the Agreement to a third party or created any other interest (whether by way of security or otherwise) in the Agreement in favour of a third party, and
5	The pro	ovisions of this notice are governed by English law
Yours f	aithfully	
	on beha name o	alf of f Chargor]
Copy to	Secur	nty Trustee
[On ac	kпоwle	dgement copy]
То		The Royal Bank of Scotland pic [address]
Copy to)	[insert name and address of Chargor]
We ack	nowledç	ge receipt of the above notice and confirm the matters set out in paragraph 4
	on beha name o	alf of f counterparty]
Date	**	
		•

Schedule 7 – Current Accounts

Name of Chargor	Account bank	Sort code	Account number
Dennis Holdings Limited	HSBC Bank plc		
	The Royal Bank of Scotland plc		
	The Royal Bank of		

Schedule 8 - Forms of letter to and from the Account Bank

Part 1 - Notice to Account Bank regarding the Controlled Account(s)

[On relevant Chargor's notepaper]

[This form of notice is drafted on the basis that the relevant Chargor has a single Controlled Account if any Chargor has more than one Controlled Account, make appropriate drafting adjustments. Delete this note and any other square bracketed notes in italics below before the notice is signed by the Chargor and sent to the Account Bank.]

[insert name and address of Account Bank]

The Royal Bank of Scotla	nd plc (the Debenture)
Debenture dated [**] between (among others) [Chargor] and *
Dear Sirs	
Date **	

We refer to the account which we hold with you numbered ** , sort code ** as it may from time to time be re-designated or re-numbered (the Controlled Account)

We are writing to give you notice of certain rights in respect of the Controlled Account that we have granted to The Royal Bank of Scotland plc in its capacities (as applicable) as agent and security trustee for certain banks and financial institutions (the Bank)

Under the Debenture we have [charged by way of fixed charge in favour of][assigned absolutely to] the Bank all amounts standing to the credit of the Controlled Account from time to time (the Deposit) and all of our right, title and interest in, and relating to, the Controlled Account

[" we have [charged by way of fixed charge in favour of][assigned absolutely to] the Security
Trustee " Delete whichever square bracketed option is inappropriate (see Clauses 3.6 (Controlled
Accounts held with the Security Trustee) and 3.7 (Other Controlled Accounts)) and remove the square
brackets from the option which is appropriate.]

Regardless of any previous authorisations or instructions which we may have given you and without making any enquiry as to the justification for the matter, we irrevocably authorise and instruct you

- (a) to disclose to the Bank any information relating to us, the Controlled Account and the Deposit which the Bank may from time to time request you to disclose to it,
- (b) to hold the Deposit to the order of the Bank, and not permit the whole or any part of the Deposit to be withdrawn by us [until the death of Felix Dennis]¹,
- (c) to pay or release all or any part of the Deposit, and generally to act in relation to the Deposit, only in accordance with the written instructions of the Bank,

То

¹ To be inserted only for the notice for the Deposit Account

(d) to comply with the terms of any written notice or instructions in any way relating to or purporting to relate to the Controlled Account or the Deposit which you may receive from the Bank

The instructions and authorisations contained in this letter may not be revoked or varied without the written agreement of the Bank

This letter is governed by English law

Please confirm your agreement to the above by sending an acknowledgement to the Bank in the form attached, with a copy to ourselves

Yours faithfully,

for and on behalf of **

[Chargor]

copy The Royal Bank of Scotland plc [address]

Part 1- Notice to Account Bank regarding the Holding Accounts

[On relevant Chargor's notepaper]

[This form of notice is drafted on the basis that the relevant Chargor has a single Holding Account. If any Chargor has more than one Holding Account, make appropriate drafting adjustments. Delete this note and any other square bracketed notes in italics below before the notice is signed by the Chargor and sent to the Account Bank.]

[insert name and address of Account Bank]

		ated [**] between (among others) [Chargor] and ** ank of Scotland pic (the Debenture)
1		fer to the account which we hold with you numbered ** , sort code ** may from time to time be re-designated or re-numbered (the Holding Account)
2	have g	e writing to give you notice of certain rights in respect of the Holding Account that we transfer to The Royal Bank of Scotland plc in its capacities (as applicable) as agent and by trustee for certain banks and financial institutions (the Bank)
3	standır	the Debenture we have charged by way of floating charge to the Bank all amounts ng to the credit of the Holding Account from time to time (the Deposit) and all of our itle and interest in, and relating to, the Holding Account
4	We no	tify you that
	(a)	until such time as you have received notice from the Bank under paragraph 6 below, you may accept instructions from either the Bank or ourselves for the withdrawal of moneys from the Holding Account,
	(b)	after you have received notice from the Bank under paragraph 6 below we may not withdraw any moneys from the Holding Account without first obtaining the prior

there is a prohibition in the Debenture on the creation of any further security interest

you are authorised to disclose information relating to the Holding Account to the Bank

hold all moneys from time to time standing to the credit of the Holding Account to the

After you have received notice from the Bank under paragraph 6 below, we irrevocably

(c)

(d)

(a)

5

written consent of the Bank,

over the Holding Account, and

on the request of the Bank

order of the Bank, and

authorise and instruct you to

То

Date

Dear Sirs

- (b) pay all or any part of those moneys to the Bank (or as it may direct) promptly following receipt of written instructions from the Bank to that effect
- By counter-signing this notice the Bank confirms that you may accept instructions from us to make withdrawals from the Holding Account (without prejudice to any restrictions on our right to make such withdrawals under the Facility Agreement referred to in the Debenture) until such time as the Bank shall notify you (with a copy to us) in writing that its permission is withdrawn

We acknowledge that you may comply with the instructions in this letter without any further permission from us

The instructions in this letter may not be revoked or amended without the prior written consent of the Bank

This letter is governed by English law

Please confirm your agreement to the above by sending an acknowledgement to the Bank in the form attached, with a copy to ourselves

Yours faithfully,

[Chargor]

The Royal Bank of Scotland pic

Part 2- Notice to Account Bank regarding the Current Accounts

[On relevant Chargor's notepaper]

To
important name and address of Account Bank]

Date

Dear Sirs

Debenture dated [**] between (among others) [Chargor] and The Royal Bank of Scotland pic (the Debenture)

- We refer to the follows accounts we hold with you, as they may from time to time be redesignated or re-numbered
 - (a) [Insert Account Number/Sort Code for each Current Account held by the relevant Chargor],
 - (b) **

(the Current Accounts)

- We are writing to give you notice of certain rights in respect of the Current Accounts that we have granted to The Royal Bank of Scotland plc in its capacities (as applicable) as agent and security trustee for certain banks and financial institutions (the Bank)
- Under the Debenture we have charged by way of floating charge to the Bank all amounts standing to the credit of each Current Account from time to time (each a **Deposit** and together the **Deposits**) and all of our right, title and interest in, and relating to, each Current Account
- 4 We notify you that
 - (a) after you have received notice from the Bank under paragraph 6 below, we may not withdraw any moneys from any Current Account without first obtaining the prior written consent of the Bank,
 - (b) there is a prohibition in the Debenture on the creation of any further Security Interest over any Current Account, and
 - (c) you are authorised to disclose information relating to the Current Accounts to the Bank on the request of the Bank
- After you have received notice from the Bank under paragraph 6 below, we irrevocably authorise and instruct you to
 - (a) hold all moneys from time to time standing to the credit of each Current Account to the order of the Bank, and
 - (b) pay all or any part of those moneys to the Bank (or as it may direct) promptly following receipt of written instructions from the Bank to that effect.

By counter-signing this notice the Bank confirms that you may accept instructions from us to make withdrawals from each Current Account (without prejudice to any restrictions on our right to make such withdrawals under the Facility Agreement referred to in the Debenture) until such time as the Bank shall notify you (with a copy to us) in writing that its permission is withdrawn

We acknowledge that you may comply with the instructions in this letter without any further permission from us

The instructions in this letter may not be revoked or amended without the prior written consent of the Bank

This letter is governed by English law

Please confirm your agreement to the above by sending an acknowledgement to the Bank in the form attached, with a copy to ourselves

Yours faithfully,

[Chargor]

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Part 3- Form of acknowledgements from Account bank

[On Account Bank's notepaper]

[When preparing the form of acknowledgement letter to attach to a notice, delete/amend the references to "[Controlled Account][Holding Account][Current Accounts]" below as appropriate depending on the Account(s) to which the notice refers Delete this note and any other square bracketed notes in italics below before the form of acknowledgement is sent to the Account Bank]

		_	
То	**	[insert name and address of Security Trustee]	
Attention	**		
Date	**		
Dear Sirs			

Debenture dated [**] between (among others) [Chargor] and The Royal Bank of Scotland pic (the Debenture)

We acknowledge receipt of a notice (the **Notice**) from ** (the **Chargor**) dated ** of the security granted by the Chargor to the Bank over the [Controlled Account][Holding Account][Current Accounts] under the Debenture

Words defined in the Notice have the same meaning in this letter

We confirm that

- (a) we acknowledge receipt of the Notice and accept the authorisations and instructions contained in the Notice and we undertake to comply with its terms,
- (b) we have not received notice of
 - (i) any other assignment of or encumbrance over [the Controlled Account][the Holding Account][any Current Accounts] or [the][any] Deposit, or
 - (ii) any interest, claim or right in or to them by any third party,

and we shall promptly give you notice of any such actual, potential or asserted assignment, encumbrance, interest, claim or right of which we become aware, and

(a) we do not, and will not, hold or otherwise have the benefit of any security interest or other encumbrance over the Controlled Account the Holding Account any Current Accounts or the Jany Deposit other than in our capacity as Security Trustee for the Secured Parties referred to in the Debenture, and

[Delete the last set of wording in square brackets above unless the Account Bank is also the Security Trustee]

(b) we will not exercise any right of combination, consolidation, merger or set-off which we may have in respect of [the Controlled Account][the Holding Account][the Current Accounts] except for the netting of credit and debit balances pursuant to current account netting arrangements expressly permitted under the Finance Documents (as that term applies in the Debenture) or if.

- (i) at the time of exercising that right, we are a Secured Party (as that term applies in the Debenture),
- (ii) we exercise that right in respect of an obligation which purports to be secured under the Debenture, and
- (iii) we exercise that right pursuant to, or in accordance with, the terms of the Finance Documents (as that term applies in the Debenture)

We are aware that you are relying on this letter in connection with your rights under the Debenture

This letter is governed by English law

Yours faithfully,

for and on behalf of **

[Account Bank]

copy [Chargor]

Schedule 9 - Trade Marks

Part 2 - Trade Marks

Proprietor

Trade Mark

Class(es)

Registration number

None

Part 1- Trade Mark Applications

Proprietor

Mark

Class(es)

Application number Filing date

None

Schedule 10 - Intellectual Property Rights

Part A

nghts, database rights, moral rights, copyrights and related rights and all applications for and renewals, revivals or extensions of such rights and all similar or in connection with the publications listed below in this Part A, all intellectual property rights (legal or beneficial and whether or not registered or registrable) rights in goodwill or to sue for passing off or unfair competition, know-how, trade secrets, confidential information, registered designs, unregistered design owned, used or held for use by Dennis Holdings Limited, including, without limitation, any goodwill, trade and business names, domain names and URLs, equivalent rights or forms of protection in any part of the world

•	ЭРМ	• \$\frac{1}{2}	Know Your Mobile
•	Adnostic	ž	Kontrabrand
•	Auto Express		Land Rover Monthly
•	Car Buyer	Ž	MacUser
•	Channel Pro	Ž	Magbook
•	Cloud Pro	Ž.	Men's Fitness
•	Computer Active	Ē.	Micro Mart
•	Computer Shopper	Ž	MotorMutt
•	Custom PC	ō.	Octane
•	Cyclist	ď	Performance Cars
•	Den of Geek	3	WebUser
•	DSLR	3	Women's Fitness
•	Emerging Platform		
•	Health And Fitness		
•	IT Pro		

Part B - Trademarks

Proprietor Number Dennis Holdings Limited 7542509 Dennis Holdings Limited 1430131 Dennis Holdings Limited 2411664 Dennis Holdings Limited 2543580 Dennis Holdings Limited 2543580 Dennis Holdings Limited 2543580 Dennis Holdings	Trade Mark 3PM	Status	Country	Classes
	зРМ			
	3PM			
	3PM			
		Registered/Granted	European Community	35
	Auto Express	Registered	United Kingdom	16
				
	Auto Express	Registered	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41
-	AUTO EXPRESS	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 37, 38, 41
10	CAR BUYER/ CarBuyer (Series of 2)	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 35, 38, 41, 42
10				
	CLOUD PRO	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis				
Holdings				
Limited 2580536	CLOUD PRO	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41
Dennis				
Holdings				
Limited 6561501	COMPUTER PRO	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis				
Holdings				
Limited 00074893	COMPUTER ACTIVE	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 25, 35

Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	4354411	CUSTOM PC	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	2350394	CUSTOMPC CPC	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	16
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	6758825	DEN OF GEEK	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	10907582	DEN OF GEEK	Registered/Granted	European Community	18, 21, 24, 35, 38, 45
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	10955871	DEN OF GEEK	Registered/Granted	European Community	25, 28, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	4382427	DEN OF GEEK	Registered/Granted	United States of America	09, 16, 21, 24, 25, 35, 38, 41, 45
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	1579637	DEN OF GEEK	Examination in Progress	Canada	
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	2491463	DENNIS IMOTOR	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	6561575	DIGITAL PRO	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	005222914	DIGITAL SLR PHOTOGRAPHY	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis	2501589	DRIVER POWER	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 35, 41

		-	09, 16, 41			09, 16, 25, 41			09, 16, 41			09, 16, 41			09, 16, 41			09, 16			38, 41			09, 16			16		
		,	United Kingdom			United Kingdom			Australia			European Community			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			Turkey			United Kingdom			Turkey		:
			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted		
			expert REVIEWS and Device			FitBrit			GROWING IS FUN LOGO			GROWING IS FUN logo			GROWING IS FUN logo			HEALTH & FITNESS			HEALTH & FITNESS (stylised)			HEALTH & FITNESS (stylised)			HEALTH & FITNESS Device		
			2535268			2535892			1263356			7240781			2482742			2544238			2008 69747			2611766			2008 35656		
Holdings Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	the Lateral

Limited					
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	6759641	IGIZMO	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	7219058	IMOTOR logo	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	2489760	IMOTOR logo	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	4721271	INSIDE EDGE	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 28
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	5844436	INSIDE POKER	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 38, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	2359698	InsideEdge & device	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	16
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	8140899	IT PRO	Registered/Granted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis				•	
Holdings					
Lmited	2485492	KNOW YOUR	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Umited	4040656	KNOW YOUR CELL	Registered/Granted	United States of America	35, 41, 42
Dennis					:
Holdings					
Limited	2485021	KNOW YOUR DSLR LOGO	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41

Dennis					
Holdings	•				
Lmited	2485019	KNOW YOUR MOBILE LOGO	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	10619881	MAGBOOK	Application Accepted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	1506646	MAGBOOK Device	Registered/Granted	Australia	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	10623957	MAGBOOK Device	Application Accepted	European Community	09, 16, 41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Lmited	D00.2012 038309	MAGBOOK Device	Application Filed	Indonesia	G
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	D00 2012 038324	MAGBOOK Device	Application Filed	Indonesia	16
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	100 2012 038323	MAGBOOK Device	Application Filed	Indonesia	41
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	857336	MAGBOOK Device	Application Filed	Thailand	6
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	857337	MAGBOOK Device	Application Filed	Thailand	16
Dennis					
Holdings					
Limited	857338	MAGBOOK Device	Application Filed	Thailand	41
Dennis	2507544	MAGBOOK Stylised	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	09, 16, 41

			-															-												
				16, 25, 42			16			09, 16, 41			09, 16, 41			41			6			09, 16, 41			09, 16, 38, 41			16		09, 16, 41
				Ireland			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			European Community			United States of America			United States of America			European Community			European Community			United Kingdom		Benelux
				Registered/Granted			Application Accepted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted		Registered/Granted												
				MEN'S FITNESS			MEN'S FITNESS			MICRO MART			MONKEY			MONKEY			MONKEY			MONKEY LOGO			MONKEY MAG			OCTANE		OCTANE
•				212645			2158359			2422559			8150237			3549429			77/440748			8150211			5241931			2321414		922451
Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Lmited	Dennis	Holdings	Lmited	Dennis	Holdings

																						!								
			09, 16, 41			09, 16			6			16			41			16			09, 16			16			09, 16, 25, 41			
			European Community			Japan			Argentina			Argentina	ì		Argentina			China			Japan			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			
			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Application Published			Application Published			Application Published			Application Filed			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			
			OCTANE			OCTANE			OCTANE			OCTANE			OCTANE			OCTANE			OCTANE In Katakana			PERFORMANCE CAR			ROUGH TRACK			
			10888923			5545279 (3230610			3230611			3230612			13349572			5545280			1518471			2486354 F			
Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	

	38, 41, 45					09, 16, 41			09, 16, 25, 35, 39			38			09, 16			21, 25			09, 16, 35, 41			09, 16, 41			09, 16, 41	09, 16, 41
	United States of America		Canada			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			United Kingdom			Australia			Australia	Turkey
	Registered/Granted		Application Accepted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Registered/Granted			Application Published			Registered			Registered			Application Filed			Examination in Progress	Examination in Progress
	SEEK A GEEK		SEEK A GEEK			TOTAL GAMBLER			ULTRAVIXENS (Series of 3)		ULTRAVIXENS/UltraVixens/ULTRA	VIXENS/ULTRAVIXENS [series of 4]			VANTAGE MAGAZINE			Webuser / Web User			Webuser / Web User			WOMEN'S FITNESS			WOMEN'S FITNESS	WOMEN'S FITNESS
•	4378704		1579640			2394628			2449292			2506239			3014309			2255669			2333873			1592865			1457286	2012/101021
Dennis Holdings	Limited	Dennis Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis	Holdings	Limited	Dennis

RC/CGA/070001 01085/33852613 07

Holdings Limited					
Dennis					
Holdings		WOMEN'S FITNESS (Stylised) (Series			
Limited	2553438	of 2)	Registered/Granted	United Kingdom	16

Schedule 11 - Material Trade Marks

Proprietor	Trade mark	Class(es)	Registration Number	Country
Dennis Holdings Limited	Auto Express	16	1430131	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	Auto Express	09, 16, 41	2411664	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	AUTO EXPRESS	09, 16, 37	2626888	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	CAR BUYER/CarBuyer (Series of 2)	09, 16, 35, 38, 41, 42	2543580	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	COMPUTER ACTIVE	09, 16, 25, 35	000748939	European Community
Dennis Holdings Limited	DIGITAL SLR PHOTOGRAPHY	09, 16, 41	005222914	European Community
Dennis Holdings Limited	HEALTH & FITNESS	09, 16	2544238	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	HEALTH & FITNESS (stylised)	09, 16	2611766	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	MEN'S FITNESS	16	2158359	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	OCTANE	16	2321414	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	OCTANE	09, 16, 41	10888923	European Community
Dennis Holdings Limited	Webuser/Web User	21, 25	2255669	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	Webuser/Web User	09, 16, 35, 41	2333873	United Kingdom
Dennis Holdings Limited	WOMEN'S FITNESS (Stylised) (Series of 2)	16	2553438	United Kingdom

Schedule 12 - Form of Security Accession Deed

Security Accession Deed

Dated

Between

- (1) ** Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of [England and Wales] with registered number ** (the **New Chargor**),
- (2) **Dennis Holdings Limited**, a company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales with registered number 06400281 (the **Company**) for itself and as agent for and on behalf of each of the existing Chargors, and
- (3) The Royal Bank of Scotland pic as agent and trustee for itself and the Secured Parties (the Security Trustee)

Recitals

This deed is supplemental to a debenture dated ** between, among others, the Company, the Chargors named in it and the Security Trustee (as supplemented and amended from time to time, the **Debenture**)

This deed witnesses

1 Definitions and interpretation

1.1 Definitions

Words and expressions defined in the Debenture shall have the same meanings in this Deed

1.2 Construction

The principles of construction set out in clause 1.2 (Construction) of the Debenture shall apply to this Deed, insofar as they are relevant to it, as they apply to the Debenture

2 Accession of New Chargor

The New Chargor agrees to be a Chargor for the purposes of the Debenture with immediate effect and agrees to be bound by all of the terms of the Debenture as if it had originally been a party to it as a Chargor

3 Creation of Security

The New Chargor mortgages, charges and assigns to the Security Trustee all its business, undertaking and assets on the terms of clause 3 (*Creation of Security*) of the Debenture provided that

(a) the Land charged by way of legal mortgage shall be the Land referred to in Schedule 1 (Land),

- (b) the Shares mortgaged or (if and to the extent that the mortgage does not take effect as a mortgage) charged by way of fixed charge shall include the Shares referred to in Schedule 2 (Shares),
- (c) the Controlled Accounts charged by way of [fixed charge][assignment] shall include those set out in Schedule 3 (Accounts),
- (d) the Assigned Agreements assigned or (if and to the extent that the assignment does not take effect as an assignment) charged by way of fixed charge shall include the Assigned Agreements set out in Schedule 4 (Assigned Agreements), and
- (e) the Insurances assigned or (if and to the extent that the assignment does not take effect as an assignment) charged by way of fixed charge shall include the Insurances set out in Schedule 5 (*Insurances*)

4 Consent of existing Chargors

The existing Chargors agree to the terms of this Deed and agree that its execution will in no way prejudice or affect the Security granted by each of them under (and covenants given by each of them in) the Debenture

5 Notices

The New Chargor confirms that its address details for notices in relation to clause 22 (*Notices*) of the Debenture are as follows

Address **

Attention **
Fax **

6 Law

This Deed is governed by English law

Executed as a deed and delivered on the date appearing at the beginning of this Deed

Schedule 1 - Land

Schedule 2 - Shares

Schedule 3 - Controlled Accounts

Schedule 4 – Assigned Agreements

Schedule 5 - Insurances

Signatories to Security Accession Deed

New Chargor	
Executed as a deed by ** [New Chargor] acting by a director in the presence of)
Signature of witness	
Name of witness Address	
Company	
Executed as a deed by Dennis Holdings Limited acting by a director in the presence of)
Signature of witness	
Name of witness	
Address	
Security Tructes	
Security Trustee	
Executed for and on behalf of The Royal Bank of Scotland pic)

Signatories to Debenture

The Company Executed as a deed by Dennis Holdings Limited Ian Leggett acting by a director in the presence of Signature of witness ANDREW Borro Name of witness Address The Original Chargors Executed as a deed by lan Leggett **Dennis Holdings Limited** acting by a director in the presence of Signature of witness ANDREW BOTO Name of witness Address Executed as a deed by lan Leggett Dennis Publishing (UK) Limited acting by a director in the presence of Signature of witness ANDREW BOTO Name of witness Address

The Security Trustee

Signed for and on behalf of The Royal Bank of Scotland pic



Alıstaır Hay